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practices in violation of Section 5(a) of 
the FTC Act. However, in United States 
v. Hopkins Dodge, Inc., 849 F.2d 311 (8th 
Cir. 1988), the United States Court of 
Appeals for the Eighth Circuit held that 
the Commission’s failure to explicitly 
state in these two cases that credit 
advertising violations of the TILA and 
Regulation Z are unfair or deceptive acts 
or practices precluded use of the two 
cases as predicates to civil penalty 
enforcement actions pursuant to section 
5(m)(l)(B) of the FTC Act.

On January 31,1989, the Commission 
issued an order against Reliable 
Mortgage Corp. et al. to show cause why 
the proceedings against them should not 
be reopened to consider modification of 
the decision therein to clarify that 
respondents’ credit advertising 
violations of the TELA were also unfair 
and deceptive acts or practices in 
violation of the FTC Act. On January 51, 
1989, the Commission also issued an 
order against Seekonk Freezer Meats et 
al. to show cause why the proceedings 
against them should not be reopened to 
consider modification of the decision 
therein to clarify that respondents’ 
credit advertising violations of the TILA 
were either unfair or unfair and 
deceptive acts or practices in violation 
of the FTC Act. The Commission also 
issued a press release and published a 
notice in the Federal Register on 
February 17,1989, announcing a 30-day 
period for public comment on the 
proposed Teopenings.

Respondents failed to answer the 
show cause orders. (Respondent 
Reliable did, however, informally reply 
by letter to the FTC staff that it had no 
objections to the proposed reopening).
No comments were received in response 
to the Federal Register notice.

As a result, on September 25,1989, the 
Commission issued orders reopening the 
proceedings in Reliable and Seekonk, 
and directing briefs to consider 
modification of the decisions contained 
therein. The Commission now intends to 
decide whether to modify the decisions 
in Reliable and Seekonk to state 
expressly that the credit advertising 
practices addressed in Reliable 
constitute unfair and deceptive acts or 
practices in violation of section 5(a) of 
the FTC Act and that the credit 
advertising practices addressed in 
Seekonk constitute either unfair or 
unfair and deceptive acts or practices in 
violation of section 5(a) of the FTC Act. 
Interested parties may submit amicus 
curiae briefs as noted above.
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By the Commission.
Donald S. Clark,
Secretary.
[FR Doc. 89-27089 Filed 11-16-89; 8:45 am] 
BILLING CODE 6750-01-M

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND 
HUMAN SERVICES

Office of the Secretary

Agency Forms Submitted to the Office 
of Management and Budget for 
Clearance

On Fridays, the Department of Health 
and Human Services, Office of the 
Secretary publishes a list of information 
collections it has submitted to the Office 
of Management and Budget (OMB) for 
clearance in compliance with the 
Paperwork Reduction Act (44 U.S.C. 
chapter 35). The following are those 
information collections recently 
submitted to OMB.

1. Teenage Parent Demonstration: 24- 
Month Follow-up—-New—-This survey is 
part of the impact evaluation of the 
Teenage Parent Demonstration Projects 
being conducted in Illinois and New 
Jersey. The survey will gather 
information on outcomes from 
demonstration participants which will 
contribute to the evaluation of the 
demonstrations. The purpose of the 
demonstration projects is to identify 
interventions which promote self- 
sufficiency among teenage parents. 
Respondents: individuals; Num ber o f 
Respondents: 4,774; Frequency o f 
Response: One time; A verage Burden 
p er Response: 1.31 Hours; Total Burden: 
6,244 Hours.

OMB Desk O fficer: Shannah Koss- 
McCallum.

Copies of the information collection 
packages listed above can be obtained 
by calling the OS Reports Clearance 
Officer on (202) 245-6511. Written 
comments and recommendations for the 
proposed information collection should 
be sent directly to the OMB desk officer 
designated above at the following 
address: OMB Reports Management 
Branch, New Executive Office Building, 
Room 3208, Washington, DC 20503.

Dated: November-8,1989.
James F. Trickett,
Deputy Assistant Secretary for Managemen t 
and Acquisition.
[FR Doc. 89-26945 Filed 11-16-89; 8:45 pm] 
BILLING CODE 4150-04-M

17, 1989 /  Notices

Alcohol, Drug Abuse, and Mental 
Health Administration 
Advisory Committee Meeting in 
December
a g en c y : Alcohol, Drug Abuse, and 
Mental Health Administration, HHS. 
a c t io n : Notice o f meeting.

su m m a r y : This notice sets forth the 
schedule and proposed agenda of the 
forthcoming meeting of one of the 
agency’s advisory committees in the 
month of December 1989.

The initial review group will be 
performing review of applications for 
Federal assistance. Therefore, portions 
of the meetings will be closed to the 
public as determined by the 
Administrator, ADAMHA, in 
accordance with 5 U.S.C. 552(b) (6) and 
5 U.S.C. app. 2 10(d).

Notice of this meeting is required 
under the Federal Advisory Committee 
Act, Public Law 92-463.

Committee Name: Mental Health 
Acquired Immunodeficiency Syndrome 
Research Review Committee, NIMH.

Date and Time: December 5-6: 8:00 
a.m.

Place: The Canterbury Hotel, 1733 N 
Street NW., Washington, DC 20036.

Status o f M eeting: Open—December 
5; 8:30-9:15 a.m. Closed—Otherwise

Contact: Regina Thomas, Room 9C-15, 
Parklawn Building, 5600 Fishers Lane, 
Rockville, MD 20857, (301) 443-6470.

Purpose: The Committee is charged 
with the initial review of applications 
for assistance from the National 
Institute o f Mental Health for support of 
activities in the fields of research and 
psychoneuroimmunological, 
psychosocial, behavioral, and 
psychological aspects of AIDS as they 
relate to mental health, with 
recommendations to the National 
Advisory Mental Health Council for 
final review.

Substantive information, a summary 
of the meeting, and a roster of 
committee members may be obtained 
from Ms. Joanna JKieffer, NIMH 
Committee Management Officer, Room 
9-105, Parklawn Building, 5600 Fishers 
Lane, Rockville, Maryland 20857, (301) 
443-4333.

Dated: November 13,1989.
Peggy W. Cockrill,
Committee Management Officer, Alcohol, 
Drug Abuse, and Mental Health 
Administration.
[FR Doc. 89-26992 Filed 11-16-89; 8:45 amj 
BILLING CODE 4160-20-M
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Food and Drug Administration

[Docket No. 89F-0462]

The Dow Chemical Co., E.i. Du Pont De 
Nemours and Co., B.F. Goodrich; Filing 
of Food Additive Petition

AGENCY: Food and Drug Administration. 
a c t io n : Notice.

s u m m a r y : The Food and Drug 
Administration (FDA) is announcing 
that the Dow Chemical Co., E.I. du Pont 
de Nemours and Co., and B.F. Goodrich 
have filed a petition proposing that the 
food additive regulations be amended to 
provide for the safe use of polyurethane 
resins, derived from reactions of 
diphenylmethane diisocyanate with 1,4- 
butanediol and polytetramethylene 
ether glycol, as rubber articles intended 
for repeated use in contact with food.
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT:
Vir D. Anand, Center for Food Safety 
and Applied Nutrition (HFF-335), Food 
and Drug Administration, 200 C Street, 
SW., Washington, DC 20204, 202-472- 
5690.
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: Under 
the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic 
Act (sec. 409(b)(5) (21 U.S.C. 348(b)(5))), 
notice is given that a petition (FAP 
OB4182) has been filed by the Dow 
Chemical Co., 1803 Bldg., Door 7, 
Midland, MI 48674, E.I. Du Pont de 
Nemours and Co., 1007 Market St., 
Wilmington, DE 19898, and B.F. 
Goodrich, 3925 Embassy Pkwy., Akron, 
OH 44313, proposed that § 177.2600 
Rubber articles intended for repeated 
use (21 CFR 177.2600) of the food 
additive regulations be amended to 
provide for the safe use of polyurethane 
resins, derived from the reaction of 
diphenylmethane diisocyanate with 1,4- 
butanediol and polytetramethylene 
ether glycol, as rubber articles intended 
for repeated use in contact with food.

The potential environmental impact of 
this action is being reviewed. If the 
agency finds that an environmental 
impact statement is not required and 
this petition results in a regulation, the 
notice of availability of the agency’s 
finding of no significant impact and the 
evidence supporting that finding will be 
published with the regulation in the 
Federal Register in accordance with 21 
CFR 25.40(c).

Dated: November 8,1989.
Richard ). Ronk,
Deputy Director, Center for Food Safety and 
Applied Nutrition.
[FR Doc. 89-26990 Filed 11-16-89; 8:45 am] 
BILUNG CODE 41C-0-01-M

[Docket No. 89F-0452]

Enzyme Bio-Systems Ltd.; Filing of 
Food Additive Petition
AGENCY: Food and Drug Administration. 
a c t io n : Notice.________

s u m m a r y : The Food and Drug 
Administration (FDA) is announcing 
that Enzyme Bio-Systems Ltd. has filed a 
petition proposing that the food additive 
regulations be amended to provide for 
the safe use of dimethylamine- 
epichlorohydrin and acrylamide acrylic 
acid resins as fixing agents for 
immobilizing glucose isomerase enzyme. 
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: 
Geraldine E. Harris, Center for Food 
Safety and Applied Nutrition (HFF-334), 
Food and Drug Administration, 200 C 
Street SW., Washington, DC 20204, 202- 
426-9463.
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: Under 
the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic 
Act (sec. 409(b)(5) (21 U.S.C. 348(b)(5))), 
notice is given that Enzyme Bio-Systems 
Ltd., International Plaza, Route 9W, 
Englewood Cliffs, NJ 07632, has filed a 
petition (FAP 9A4175), proposing that 
the food additive regulations be 
amended to provide for the safe use of 
dimethylamine-epichlorohydrin and 
acrylamide acrylic acid resins as fixing 
agents for immobilizing glucose 
isomerase enzyme.

The potential environmental impact of 
this action is being reviewed. If the 
agency finds that an environmental 
impact statement is not required and 
this petition results in a regulation, the 
notice of availability of the agency’s 
finding of no significant impact and the 
evidence supporting that finding will be 
published with the regulation in the 
Federal Register in accordance with 21 
CFR 25.40(c).

Dated: November 8,1989.
Richard ). Ronk,
Deputy Director, Center for Food Safety and 
Applied Nutrition.
[FR Doc. 89-26988 Filed 11-16-89; 8:45 am] 
BILUNG CODE 4160-01-M

[Docket No. 89F-0451]

ICI Americas, Inc.; Filing of Food 
Additive Petition
AGENCY: Food and Drug Administration. 
ACTION: Notice._______________________

SUMMARY: T he Food and Drug 
A dm inistration (FDA) is announcing 
that ICI A m ericas, Inc., h as filed  a 
petition proposing that the food additive 
regulations b e  am ended to provide for 
the sa fe  use o f p olyethylene glycol(M W  
15QQ-4000)/poly(12-hydroxystearic acid)

17, 1989 /  Notices
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copolymers as a stabilizer in the 
preparation of polyacrylamide retention 
and drainage aids used in the 
manufacture of paper and paperboard 
intended to contact aqueous and fatty 
food.
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: 
Andrew D. Laumbach, Center for Food 
Safety and Applied Nutrition (HFF-335), 
Food and Drug Administration, 200 C 
Street, SW., Washington, DC 20204, 202- 
472-5690.
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: Under 
the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic 
Act (sec. 409(b)(5) (21 U.S.C. 348(b)(5))), 
notice is given that a petition (FAP 
OB4179) has been filed by ICI Americas, 
Inc., Concord Pike & Murphy Rd., 
Wilmington, DE 19877, proposing that 
§ 176.170 Components of paper and 
paperboard in contact with aqueous and 
fatty foods (21 CFR 176.170) be amended 
to provide for the safe U 3 e  of 
polyethylene glycol (MW 1500-4000)/ 
poly(12-hydroxystearic acid) copolymers 
as a stabilizer in the preparation of 
polyacrylamide retention and drainage 
aids used in the manufacture of paper 
and paperboard intended to contact 
aqueous and fatty foods.

The potential environmental impact of 
this action is being reviewed. If the 
agency finds that an environmental 
impact statement is not required and 
this petition results in a regulation, the 
notice of availability of the agency’s 
finding of no significant impact and the 
evidence supporting that finding will be 
published with the regulation in the 
Federal Register in accordance with 21 
CFR 25.40(c).

Dated: November 8,1989.

Richard ). Ronk,
Deputy Director, Center for Food Safety and 
Applied Nutrition.
[FR Doc. 89-26989 Filed 11-16-89; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE 4160-01-M

[Docket No. 89F-0450]

ICI Americas, Inc.; Filing of Food 
Additive Petition
a g e n c y : Food and Drug Administration. 
a c t io n : Notice._______________________

SUMMARY: The Food and Drug 
Administration (FDA) is announcing 
that ICI Americas, Inc., has filed a 
petition proposing that the food additive 
regulations be amended to provide for 
the safe use of poly(isobutene)/maleic 
anhydride, diethanolamine reaction 
product as a surfactant in the 
preparation of polyacrylamide retention 
and drainage aids used in the
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manufacture of paper and paperboard 
intention to contact aqueous and fatty 
foods.
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: 
Andrew D. Laumbach, Center for Food 
Safety and Applied Nutrition (HFF-335), 
Food and Drug Administration, 200 C 
Street SW., Washington, DC 20204, 202-  
472-5690.
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: Under 
the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic 
Act (sec. 409(b)(5) (21U.S.C. 348(b)(5))), 
notice is given that a petition (FAP 
OB4178) has been filed by ICI Americas, 
Inc., Concord Pike and Murphy Rd., 
Wilmington, D E 19897, proposing that 
§ 176.170 Components of paper and 
paperboard in contact with aqueous and 
fatty foods (21 CFR 176.170) be amended 
to provide for the safe use of 
poly (isobutene)/maleic anhydrides, 
diethanolamine reaction product as a 
surfactant in the preparation of 
polyacrylamide retention and drainage 
aids used in the manufacture of paper 
and paperboard intended to contact 
aqueous and fatty foods.

The potential environmental impact of 
this action is being reviewed. If the 
agency finds that an environmental 
impact statement is not required and 
this petition results in a regulation, the 
notice of availability of the agency’s 
finding of no significant impact and the 
evidence supporting that finding will be 
published with the regulation in the 
Federal Register in accordance with 21 
CFR 25.40(c).

Dated: November 8,1989.
Richard J. Ronk,
Deputy Director, Center for Food Safety and 
Applied Nutrition.
[FR Doc. 89-26991 Filed 11-16-89; 8:45 am] 
BILLING CODE 4160-01-M

[Docket No. 89P-0225]

Ice Cream Deviating From the 
Standard of Identity; Temporary 
Permit for Market Testing

AGENCY: Food and Drug Administration, 
HHS.
a c t io n : Notice.

SUMMARY: The Food and Drug 
Administration (FDA) is announcing 
that a temporary permit has been issued 
to the Hershey Creamery Co. to market 
test a product designated as “light ice 
cream” that deviates from the U.S. 
standard -of identity for ice cream (21 
CFR 135.110). The purpose of the 
temporary permit is to allow the 
applicant to measure consumer 
acceptance of the product, identify mass 
production problems, and assess 
commercial feasibility.

DATES: This permit is effective for 15 
months, beginning on the date the food 
is introduced or caused to be introduced 
into interstate commerce, but no later 
than February 15,1990.
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: 
Joanne Travers, Center for Food Safety 
and Applied Nutrition (HFF-414), Food 
and Drug Administration, 200 C St. SW., 
Washington, DC 20204, 202-485-0324. 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: In 
aqcordance with 21 CFR 130.17 
concerning temporary permits to 
facilitate market testing of foods 
deviating from the requirements of 
standards of identity promulgated under 
section 401 of the Federal Food, Drug 
and Cosmetic Act (21 U.S.C. 341), FDA is 
giving notice that a temporary permit 
has been issued to the Hershey 
Creamery Co., 301 South Cameron St., 
P.O. Box 1821, Harrisburg, PA 17105.

The permit covers limited interstate 
marketing tests of a product that 
deviates from the U.S. standard of 
identity for ice cream in 21 CFR 135.110 
in that; (1) The milkfat content of the 
product isTeduced by at least 50 
percent; and (2) sufficient vitamin A 
palmitate is added in a suitable carrier 
to ensure that a ¥2-cup serving of the 
product contains 8 percent of the U.S. 
Recommended Daily Allowance for 
vitamin A. The product meets all 
requirements of the standard with the 
exception of these deviations. The 
purpose of this variation is to offer the 
consumer a product that is nutritionally 
equivalent to ice cream but contains 
fewer calories and less fat.

For the purpose of this permit, the 
name of the product is “light ice cream.” 
The principal display panel of the label 
must include the statements “reduced 
calorie” and “reduced fat” following the 
name. In addition, the label must bear 
the comparative statements “V3 fewer 
calories than our regular ice cream” and 
"50 percent less fat than our regular ic e . 
cream.”

The product complies with reduced 
calories labeling requirements in 21 CFR 
105.66(d). In accordance with FDA’s 
current views, reduced fat food labeling 
is acceptable because there is a 50 
percent reduction in the fat content of 
the product. The information panel of 
the label must bear nutrition labeling in 
accordance with 21 CFR 101,9.

The permit provides for the temporary 
marketing of a total of 500,000 cases of 
two half-gallon containers. The test 
product will be produced and packaged 
at the Hershey Creamery Go.,
Harrisburg, PA 17105, and will be 
distributed in Connecticut, Delaware, 
Maine, Maryland, Massachusetts, New 
Hampshire, New Jersey, New York,

North Carolina, Ohio, Pennsylvania, 
Rhode Island, Vermont, Virginia, and 
West Virginia.

Each of the ingredients used in the 
food must be stated on the label as 
required by the applicable sections of 21 
CFR part 101. This permit is effective for 
15 months, beginning on the date the 
food is introduced into interstate 
commerce, but no later than______ .

Dated: November 8,1989.
Richard J. Ronk,
Deputy Director, Center for Food Safety and 
Applied Nutrition.
[FR Doc. 89-27056 Filed 11-16-89; 8:45 am] 
BILLING CODE 4160-01-M

Health Resources and Services 
Administration

Filing of Annual Report of Federal 
Advisory Committee; Advisory Council 
on Nurses Education

Notice is hereby given that pursuant 
to section 13 of Public Law 92-463, the 
Annual Report for the following Health 
Resources and Services 
Administration’s Federal Advisory 
Committee has been filed with the 
Library of Congress:

Advisory Council on Nurses Education

Copies are available to the public for 
inspection at the Library of Congress 
Newspaper and Current Periodical 
Reading Room, Room 1026, Thomas 
Jefferson Building, Second Street and 
Independence Avenue SE., Washington, 
DC, or weekdays between 9:00 a.m. and 
4:30 pan. at the Department of Health 
and Human Services, Department 
Library, HHS North Building, Room G - 
400, 330 Independence Avenue SW., 
Washington, DC, telephone (202J 245- 
6791. Copies may be obtained from: Dr. 
Mary S. Hill, Executive Secretary, 
Advisory Council on Nurses Education, 
Room 5C-14, Parklawn Building, "5600 
Fishers Lane, Rockville, Maryland 20857, 
Telephone (301J 443-6193.

Dated: November 13,1989.
Jackie E. Baum,
Advisory Committee Management Officer, 
HRSA.
[FR Doc. 89-26986 Filed 11-16-89; 8:45 amj
BILLING CODE 4160-15-M

National institutes of Health

National Biotechnology Policy Board; 
Establishment

Pursuant to the Federal Advisory 
Committee Act of October 6,1972 (Pub.


